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Aisling Mac Namara

From: Ray Treacy [Ray.Treacy@dcenr.gov.ie]
Sent: 23 December 2014 16:51
To: Planning - Development Plan Review
Cc: Mary Brady; Eileen Walsh
Subject: Observations from DCENR WCC CDP 23122014
Attachments: Observations on WCC CDP by DCENR 23122014.pdf

23
rd

  December 2014 

 

Ms Leonora Earls, 

Planning and Development, 

Wicklow County Council, 

County Buildings, 

Whitegates, 

Wicklow. 

 

Re:  Wicklow County Development Plan 2010 - 2016 – Preparation of Wicklow County Development Plan 2016-

2022 

 

Dear Ms Earls, 

 

I refer to correspondence dated 24
th

 October 2014 in the above regard. 

 

The Department of Communications, Energy and Natural Resources on behalf of the Geological Survey of Ireland 

and the Exploration and Mining Division wish to bring to your attention the following  comments at this time. 

 

Please see attached letter. 

 

The above is without prejudice to any further comments that may be received from any other areas within the 

Department. 

 

 

Regards, 

 

Mary Brady, 

Corporate Support Unit, 

Department of Communications, Energy and Natural Resources 

Elm House, 

Earlsvale Road, 

Cavan, 

Tel: 01 6782058. 

 

 

 

 

 

Disclaimer: 

 

This electronic message contains information (and may contain files), which may be privileged or 

confidential. The information is intended to be for the sole use of the individual(s) or entity named above. If 

you are not the intended recipient be aware that any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of the contents 

of this information and or files is prohibited. If you have received this electronic message in error, please 

notify the sender immediately. This is also to certify that this mail has been scanned for viruses.  



Observations, as statutory consultee, to Wicklow County Council on the 
review of the County Development Plan 2016 – 2022   
 

This submission responds to the invitation to prescribed bodies for written submissions and 
observations regarding the overall strategy and a number of objectives as stated in the County 
Wicklow Development Plan 2016 – 2022 - Issues Booklet - Stage One Public Consultation. 
The Minister for Communications, Energy and Natural Resources is also a land owner, on 
behalf of the State, in the Avoca former mines area. 

The planning authority’s commitment to take account of relevant policies or objectives of the 
Minister is recognised in its delivery of an overall strategy for the proper planning and 
sustainable development of the County and in the ‘Core Strategy’ for its spatial organisation 
over the plan period, as expanded upon with the strategic goals, policies and objectives of the 
plan. 

The Irish Geological Heritage & Planning (IGH) Programme in the Geological Survey of 
Ireland of the Department of Communications, Energy & Natural Resources  aims to ensure 
that due consideration is given to geological heritage in the planning process, in order to 
promote and protect its scientific, educational or tourism potential, as appropriate. This has 
been partially fulfilled by GSI’s recent documentation of County Geological Sites, in an audit 
of the Geological heritage of County Wicklow, in partnership with Wicklow County Council 
and the Heritage Council. The report will be available from the GSI and Wicklow County 
Council websites in early 2015. 

The Minister is committed to the long-term remediation of the Avoca former mine site, the 
scale and cost of which was identified in the feasibility study published in 2008 – Feasibility 
Study for Management and Remediation of the Avoca Mine Site – CDM.  In the short term, 
however, the Government has allocated funds to address prioritised public health and safety 
hazards and to do so without compromising the environmental, heritage or future tourism 
potential of the area. 

It is noted that an environmental assessment of the Wicklow County Development Plan 
(CDP) 2016-2022 will be carried out under the processes required under Strategic 
Environmental Assessment (SEA),  On page 25 it states that:  ‘Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (SEA) aims to provide a high level of protection to the environment and to 
promote sustainable development by contributing to the integration of environmental 
considerations into the preparation and adoption of the CDP’. 

In that context, the Minister would like to outline environmental issues and objectives that 
should be assessed in advance of the next iteration of the County Wicklow Development 
Plan.  
 
Vision  

The vision statement continues to be relevant as was applied to the 2010 – 2016 plan and the 
associated goals where they are compatible with that vision.  The particular challenge to 
which the Minister brings attention is the extent to which the goal ‘to protect and enhance the 
diversity of the county’s natural and built heritage’ can be achieved within the vision for 
County Wicklow to be a place ‘where opportunities abound to live and work in a safe 
atmosphere … and a healthy environment’. 

 



The challenges facing Wicklow’s tourism and recreational package 
A question posed on page 14 asks how to achieve the correct balance in terms of exploiting 
the county’s assets through the promotion of tourism activity, whilst protecting the natural 
and built environment of the county.  
  
 
The 2008 Feasibility Study contained a Health & Safety Audit of the former mining area 
which identified many areas of attention. The Department is presently addressing the most 
urgent of these through a 3 year programme of safety works, in addition to ongoing 
monitoring of the site.  
 
The Department considers that until the risk of these hazards identified in the Health & 
Safety Audit are reduced or eliminated, the Avoca mining area is unsafe for access by the 
public.  While the Department supports Wicklow County Councils vision for the Avoca 
mining area to facilitate access and promote the site as a tourist attraction, there remains a 
considerable amount of work to be done.  
 
Built and Natural Heritage, Including Landscape 
 
In response to the question whether all existing structures in the Record of Protected 
Structures  merit protection (page 21), the Minister would draw attention to the current record 
of protected structures which contains a number of sites at Avoca that are listed as spoil or as 
disturbed ground. These areas are not individually identified and any disturbed ground or 
spoil in the entire former mine site (the curtilage) could therefore be interpreted as a protected 
structure.  
 
Spoils are mining waste material. The spoils at Avoca Mines are contaminated with heavy 
metals and arsenic that pose a risk to human health. This information has been documented in 
a detailed study of the mine site conducted by the Department and published in 2008 
(Feasibility Study for Management and Remediation of the Avoca Mine Site – CDM). The 
Feasibility Study shows that rainfall interacts with these spoil heaps producing acid mine 
drainage, dissolving heavy metals and transporting the metal load to the river and 
groundwater.  It also demonstrates that this is resulting in contamination of the Avoca River 
and the groundwater. The contaminants within the Tigroney Spoil are considered to be in 
environmentally significant concentrations that supports the capping of the Tigroney Spoil 
Area to prevent exposure to humans, plants and animals and to prevent contaminated surface 
runoff and infiltration into the groundwater, that both ultimately discharge to the Avoca 
River. The continuing designation of these spoil heaps (mine waste) as protected structures, 
delays and limits their essential remediation, and will result in the continuation of a negative 
environmental impact on the environment.  
 
There are also physical risks with some of the features on the Record of Protected Structures 
namely at East Avoca Pit and Cronebane Pit where the risk ranges from medium to high. The 
key risks are identified as the steep sides which have the potential for slab slides, failures and 
rock fall.  Cronebane Pit has numerous boulders on the pit floor resulting from collapse of the 
rock faces. The south eastern face of the East Avoca Pit has been identified the most 
hazardous in the entire site. 
 



I attach a submission from the Department as landowners on the original designations dated 
February 1999.  The work carried out by and on behalf of the Department since then, 
particularly in the conduct of the study referred to, only reinforces the view held at that time. 
 
 
Town Plans and Settlement Plans 
 
The vision and strategy for the local Avoca area (page 35) poses the question ‘What can be 
done to improve the tourism product in Avoca?’  It is noted that ‘The untapped potential of 
Avoca Mines as an attraction could bring significant investment and resources into the area.’  
The Minister supports this vision, however, it can only be developed if the Avoca Mine site is 
safe for access by the general public.  Exposed spoil piles/contaminated mine waste and mine 
openings will make such access unsafe and therefore not feasible for development for public 
use.  It is envisaged in the IGH Programme that parts of the Avoca Mine Site area can be 
made safe for public access and that the mining heritage and tourism potential may then be 
developed on a phased basis. 
 
The plan for Avoca also includes objectives for the protection and enhancement of natural 
and built heritage, which includes archaeological sites, natural habitats and protected 
structures. It is proposed that a review will be undertaken of these objectives. 
 
Management and promotional recommendations have been made in the IGH Programme for 
the Avoca mine sites, within the parameters of the current project for the reduction or 
elimination of identified public health and safety hazards and the mitigation of their effects 
on the heritage value. 
 
To achieve the SEA aim ‘to provide a high level of protection to the environment’ along with 
consideration of the untapped potential of Avoca mines and built heritage, it is important that 
the spoil piles/mine waste is made safe and as such the designation of this material as 
protected structures should be removed to facilitate the remediation of the mine waste 
without detriment to the heritage of the town. In addition the Minister holds monitoring data 
for groundwater, surface water and spoil and the health and safety of structures for the Avoca 
mining area and can provide it to Wicklow County Council for the preparation of the SEA. 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

19 February, 1999 
 
 
Mr. Brian Doyle, 
Secretary,  
Wicklow County Council, 
County Buildings, 
Wicklow        
 
 

Local Government (Planning and Development Acts, 1963 - 1993)  
Proposed Amended Draft Development Plan for County Wicklow 1999 

Proposed Listing of Former Mine Structures at Avoca 
 
Dear Mr. Doyle, 
 
Please refer to yours of 25 January 1999 regarding the above County Development Plan. The 
Minister for the Marine and Natural Resources is a land owner in the Avoca Mines Area. In 
addition to these the Minister will receiver further lands from the cessation of the 
Receivership of Avoca Mines Ltd. Further former mine lands at Avoca will be vested in the 
Minister for Finance with the completion of the dissolution of St. Patrick's Copper Mines Ltd. 
 
This current and future block of State lands concerns parts of Nos 43, 44, 45 and 48 on 
Schedule 13.  A large portion of the lands in No. 13 is currently occupied by Wicklow 
County Council which acquired this land from the Receiver, Avoca Mines Ltd. The Minister 
is not the owner occupier of lands at Ballymoneen or Castlemacadam (No. 42 on your 
schedule). 
 
The Minister would be concerned that the inclusion of items such as "spoil heaps and 
associated disturbed ground" and "associated undisturbed ground" under Nos 43-45 and 48 
would prejudice or interfere with the carrying out of any remedial, environmental or safety 
related works in these areas.  In relation to the open pits at Cronebane (No. 48) preservation 
of the exposed rock faces may not be possible indefinitely as there may be stability problems. 
 
In general the Minister would not object to the listing of the building structures but would 
seek the assurance of the County Council that nothing would prevent the undertaking of any 
emergency actions within State lands should requirements of public safety, or prevention of 
pollution require them. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
_______________ 
BRIAN BRESLIN, 
Assistant Principal, 
Exploration and Mining Division 
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Tá eolas sa teachtaireacht leictreonach seo (agus b'fhéidir sa chomhaid ceangailte leis) a d'fhéadfadh bheith 

príobháideach nó faoi rún. Is le h-aghaidh an duine/na ndaoine nó le h-aghaidh an aonáin atá ainmnithe 

thuas agus le haghaidh an duine/na ndaoine sin amháin atá an t-eolas. Murab ionann tusa agus an té a bhfuil 

an teachtaireacht ceaptha dó bíodh a fhios agat nach gceadaítear nochtadh, cóipeáil, scaipeadh nó úsáid an 

eolais agus/nó an chomhaid seo. Más trí earráid a fuair tú an teachtaireacht leictreonach seo cuir, más é do 

thoil é, an té ar sheol an teachtaireacht ar an eolas láithreach. Deimhnítear leis seo freisin nár aims odh 

víreas sa phost seo tar éis a scanadh.  

     


























































































































